
 

 

 

 

 

 

Superstition Fire and Medical District 

Board of Directors 
February 17, 2016 

Board Chairman Jeff Cross 
Board Clerk Gene Gehrt 
Board Director Todd House 
Board Director Charlie Fox  
Board Director Jason Moeller 



 

Superstition Fire & Medical District 
Governing Board Meeting Agenda 

 
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38.431.02 
Notice is hereby given to the general public that the Superstition Fire & Medical District Governing Board will hold 
a meeting on Wednesday February 17, 2016. The meeting will be held at the Superstition Fire & Medical 
District’s Administrative Office, located at 565 N. Idaho Road, Apache Junction, Arizona. The meeting will be 
open to the public and will begin at 5:30 p.m. local time. 

AGENDA: 
A. Call to Order 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
C. Roll Call 
The following agenda items are scheduled for discussion at the board meeting.  The Governing Board may or may not 
decide to take action on any or all items. The order of the agenda items may or may not be taken in the order listed. 

1. Review and approval of the January 2016 financial reports and bank reconciliations.  
(BOD #2016-02-01) 

2. Recognition of employee performance, achievements, and special recognition for community members. 
(BOD #2016-02-02) 

3. Call to the Public. 
 A.R.S. §38-431.01(H) A public body may make an open call to the public during a public meeting, subject to reasonable time, place, and 

manner restrictions, to all individuals to address the public body on any issue within the jurisdiction of the public body. At the conclusion of an 
open call to the public, individual members of the public body may respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the public body, 
may ask staff to review a matter, or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda. However, members of the public body shall not discuss 
or take legal action on matters raised during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 

4. Consideration and possible approval of all consent agenda items as listed below:  
(BOD #2016-02-03) 
a) Board Meeting Minutes from January 20, 2016 
b) Possible adoption of annual contract for property and casualty insurance services. 
c) Possible adoption of a contract for a collection agency.. 

5. Discussion of the Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Tax Abstract for Pinal and Maricopa counties, and its impact on 
the development of the Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Revenue Budget. (BOD #2016-02-04) 

6. Discussion and possible scheduling of a Board Work Session to discuss strategic planning of Thunder 
Mountain Middle School. (BOD #2016-02-05) 

7. Senior Leadership Team Reports (BOD #2016-02-06) 
a) Fire Chief  
b) Emergency Services 
c) Technical & Community Services 
d) Administrative Services  
e) Financial Services 

8. Announcements (BOD #2016-02-n/a) 
9. Adjourn (BOD #2016-02-07) 

NOTICE: The governing board may go into executive session for the purpose of obtaining legal advice from the fire district's attorney(s) on any of the above agenda items pursuant 
to A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(3). 
One or more members of the governing board may attend the meeting telephonically. 
Governing Board meeting agenda dated and posted (at least 24 hours before the scheduled meeting date and time):  
Posted on February 11, 2016 
At:   1700 Hours 
By: Jasmin Jones 
 

The Superstition Fire & Medical District (SFMD) Administrative Office Board Meeting Room is accessible to the handicapped.  
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), those with special needs, such as large-type face print or other 
reasonable accommodations may request those through the SFMD Administration Office (480-982-4440) at least twenty-four 
hours before the board meeting. 

 



Go To Item 2 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 17, 2016 
Agenda Item: 1 
BOD#: 2016-02-01 
 
Agenda Item Title:  
Review and approval of the January 2016 financial reports and bank reconciliations.  
 
Submitted By:  
Fire Chief Paul Bourgeois 
Finance Director Roger Wood 
 
Background/Discussion:  
The district’s accounting department staff prepares the monthly financial reports. The district’s annual 
budget, which is adopted by the board each June for the following fiscal year (July 1 – June 30), is 
formatted to mirror the monthly financial statements. The financial reports provide the board with a 
monthly recap of expenditures and revenues, along with year-to-date account balance information.  
 
In compliance with A.R.S. §48-807(O), the following reports have been added to the monthly financial 
statements packet:  

1. Cash Flow – All Governmental Funds. 
The Cash Flow report consists of the combined cash balances of all District Funds. These 
balances include the General (100), Transport Services (150), Capital Projects (200), Bond 
Proceeds (300), Special Revenue (400), Debt Principal (500), and Debt Interest (600) Funds. 
The Cash Flow report is updated monthly with the actual revenues deposited into and actual 
expenditures disbursed from the district’s cash accounts. It is important to note the revenues 
and expenditures are reported on a Cash Basis. This report is generated to demonstrate that 
the fire district maintains sufficient cash available to satisfy the projected expenditures budgeted 
over the course of the fiscal year.  

2. Fund Account Bank Reconciliations. 
The reconciliation of each of the district’s Fund Cash Accounts (General (100), Transport 
Services (150), Capital Projects (200), Bond Proceeds (300), Special Revenue (400), Debt 
Principal (500), and Debt Interest (600) Funds) between the Pinal County Treasurer’s monthly 
bank statement and the District’s Fund balance sheet report is provided. To signify board 
approval of the monthly financial statements and bank reconciliations, the Board Chairman is 
requested to sign the attached Letter of Acceptance which will be kept on file at the district.  

 
Financial Impact(s)/Budget Line Item:  
N/A 
 
Enclosure(s): 
Letter of Acceptance of the Fire District’s Financial Statements and Bank Reconciliations.  
*Financials provided under separate cover 
 

 

Recommended Motion: 
 

“Motion to approve the January 2016 financial reports and bank reconciliations.” 
 

 



 
 

Superstition Fire & Medical District 
Governing Board Acceptance of Fire District’s 
Financial Statements and Bank Reconciliations 

 
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §48-807, by the signature(s) below, the Governing Board of the Superstition Fire & 
Medical District attests to the review and approval of the following financial report(s) of the fire district 
for the month of January 2016: 
 

1. Financial Statement 
2. Bank Reconciliations 

a. General (100) Fund 
b. Transport Services (150) Fund 
c. Capital Projects (200) Fund 
d. Bond Proceeds (300) Fund 
e. Special Projects (400) Fund 
f. Debt Principle (500) Fund 
g. Debt Interest (600) Fund 

 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________   _____________________________ 
Jeff Cross, Board Chairman      Date 



Go to Item 3 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 17, 2016  
Agenda Item: 2  
BOD#: 2016-02-02  
 
Agenda Item Title:  
Recognition of employee performance, achievements, and special recognition for community 
members. 
 
Submitted By: 
Fire Chief Paul Bourgeois 
 
Background/Discussion:  
This is a recurring monthly item to provide the board with information concerning superior employee 
performance, achievements, and special recognition for community members.  
 
February Services Awards: (presented for 5, 10, 15, 20, and 25 year anniversaries): 

N/A 
 
February Service Anniversaries:  

 

 

 

 

26 Years of Service 
Battalion Safety Officer Paul Perkins 

16 Years of Service 
Fire Captain / Paramedic Carlos Rivera 
Planning & Technology Support Administrator Anna Butel 

7 Years 
Fleet Supervisor Vaughn Croshaw 

3 Years 
Firefighter / Paramedic Chris Furgeson 
Firefighter Anthony Martinez 
Firefighter Jackie Anderson 
Firefighter David Endres 
Firefighter Monte Fuller 

2 Years 
Assistant Chief Jerome Schirmer 



Go to Item 4 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 17, 2016  
Agenda Item: 3  
BOD#: 2016-02-n/a 
 
Agenda Item Title:  
Call to the Public  
 
A.R.S. §38-431.01(H):  
A public body may make an open call to the public during a public meeting, subject to reasonable time, 
place and manner restrictions, to allow individuals to address the public body on any issue within the 
jurisdiction of the public body.   
At the conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the public body may respond to 
criticism made by those who have addressed the public body, may ask staff to review a matter or may 
ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.   
However, members of the public body shall not discuss or take legal action on matters raised during 
an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 
Background / Discussion:  
Call to the Public is provided so citizens may address the public body (Governing Board) with matters 
concerning the fire district. Arizona public meeting law provides that the public body may discuss, 
consider, or decide only matters listed on the agenda and other matters related thereto. Since the public 
body will generally not know what specific matters may be raised at call to the public, they will be unable 
to act until the matter is placed on a subsequent meeting agenda (at the board’s discretion). The board 
may also direct staff to follow up on the issue with the citizen.  
 
Scheduled: 
None  
 



Go to Item 5 
 

Go to Appendices 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 17, 2016  
Agenda Item: 4 
BOD#: 2016-02-03 
 
Agenda Item Title:  
Consideration and possible approval of all consent agenda items as listed below:  

a) Board Meeting Minutes from January 20, 2016 – Appendix A 
b) Possible adoption of annual contract for property and casualty insurance services. – Appendix 

B 
c) Possible adoption of a contract for a collection agency. – Appendix C 

 
Background/Discussion:  
The consent agenda allows the Board of Directors (BOD) to consider contracts, purchases, and other 
routine administrative matters having authorized funding within the current fiscal year budget as a single 
decision. Items may be withdrawn from the consent agenda and discussed separately upon request by 
any member of the BOD or staff. Information for each consent agenda item and corresponding 
supporting document is within the packet.  
 
 

 

Recommended Motion: 
 

“Motion to approve the consent agenda items for February 17, 2016.” 
 

 



Go to Item 6 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 17, 2016 
Agenda Item: 5 
BOD#: 2016-02-04 
 
Agenda Item Title:  
Discussion of the Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Tax Abstract for Pinal and Maricopa Counties, and its impact 
on the development of the Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Revenue Budget. 
 
Submitted By:  
Fire Chief Paul Bourgeois 
Finance Director Roger Wood 
 
Background/Discussion:  
The Combined Pinal County & Maricopa County Fire District Levy Limit Worksheet (Tax Abstract) is 
enclosed for reference and review.  The following is a summary of the information: 
 

1. Pinal County. 
For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2016 the SFMD Net Assessed Valuation (NAV) for all District 
properties in Pinal County increased 1.5% ($352,994,828 for FY16/17 vs. $347,927,678 for 
FY15/16). 

 
2. Maricopa County. 

For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2016 the SFMD NAV for all District properties in Maricopa 
County increased 60.7% (384,348 for FY16/17 vs. $239,192 for FY15/16).  However, the NAV 
for FY15/16 was understated due to an error at the Assessor’s office that excluded virtually all 
Net Personal Property from the District’s NAV. 

 
3. At the current tax rate of $3.19 / $100 of NAV, the tax levy for the District is $11,272,796. 

District revenue items still unknown include the SRP Contribution (taxes paid by SRP on their 
property and assets located within our District) and the Fire Insurance Premium Tax, estimated 
at $375,000 and $100,000, respectively. 

 
Financial Impact: 
N/A 
 
Enclosure(s): 
2016 Pinal County Tax Abstract 
2016 Maricopa County Tax Abstract 
 
 

 

Recommended Motion: 
“N/A” 
 

 



2016 FIRE DISTRICT LEVY LIMIT WORKSHEET

Date: 2/10/2016
MARICOPA & PINAL - SUPERSTITION FIRE & MEDICAL FIRE DISTRICT

PINAL *
ADJUSTMENTS FOR ANNEXED PROPERTY 2015
A.1.  Net Assessed Value of Property Annexed for TY 2016 $0
A.2.  A.1. divided by 100 $0
A.3.  Prior Year Actual Tax Rate (excluding debt service tax rate) $3.1900
A.4.  Adjustment for Annexed Property (A.2. multiplied by A.3.) $0

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE LEVY LIMIT 2016
B.1.  Prior Year Maximum Allowable Levy Limit (B.4 from prior year) $18,987,749
B.2.  Line B.1. multiplied by 1.08 $20,506,769
B.3.  Plus amount attributable to annexed property (Line A.4.) $0
B.4.  MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE LEVY LIMIT (Line B.2. + B.3.) $20,506,769

CURRENT YEAR NET ASSESSED VALUES 2016
C.1.   Centrally Assessed Property $10,815,217
C.2.   Locally Assessed Real Property $315,337,734
C.3.   Locally Assessed Personal Property $26,841,877
C.4.   Total Net Assessed Values (C.1. through C.3.) $352,994,828
C.5.   C.4. divided by 100 $3,529,948

CURRENT YEAR TAX RATE / LEVY LIMIT CALCULATION 2016
D.1.  Current Year Net Assessed Values / 100 (Line C.5.) $3,529,948
D.2.  Maximum Allowable Levy Limit (Line B.4.) $20,506,769
D.3.  Tax Rate (D.2. divided by D.1.; rounded to 4 decimals) $5.8094
D.4.  Maximum Tax Rate (lesser of D.3. or $3.25) $3.2500
D.5.  Current Year Allowable Tax Rate /1 $3.2500
D.6.  Current Year Allowable Levy Limit (D.5. multiplied by D.1.) $11,472,332
D.7.  Prior Year Excess Collections
D.8.  Prior Year Excess Levy
D.9.  Current Year Allowable Levy Limit (D.6. - D.7. - D.8.) $11,472,332

/1  Adjusted D.5. to avoid a levy that exceeds the maximum allowable levy limit (Line B.4.)

** Preliminary Worksheet - a combined levy limit worksheet will be distributed 
by PTOC staff based on values for Maricopa and Pinal Counties.

Note:  The combined prior year maximum allowable levy limit for line B.1 is 
$19,000,803 (or $13,054 for Maricopa and $18,987,749 for Pinal Counties).



12:24 PM 2/10/2016 1 2016 FD Levy Calc.xls Levy Template - LAK

Paul D Petersen Office of the 
Assessor Maricopa County

Assessor

          2016 Levy Limit Worksheet

Superstition Fire & Medical 

A. Annexed Property     

A1 Net Assessed Value of Annexed Property (2015 for TY 2016) $0
A2 2014 Actual Tax Rate $3.1900
A3 Adjustment Annexed Property Levy (A1/100*A2) 0
A4 Total Adjustment for Annexed Property $0

B. Maximum Levy
B1 Actual Tax Levy (excluding debt service) $13,054
B2 B1 Multipled by 1.08 $14,098
B3 Annexed Property Amount (Line A4) 0
B4 Maximum Allowable Levy Limit (Line B2 + B3) $14,098

C. Current Net Assessed Value (2014)
C4 Net  Assessed Value $384,348

D. Levy Limit Calculation
D1 Current Net Assessed Value / 100 3,843
D2 Maximum Allowable Levy Amount (Line B4) 14,098
D3. Allowable Tax Rate (D2. divided by D1. ) 3.6680
D4 Maximum Allowable Tax Rate (Lessor D3 or $3.25) 3.2500
D5. Current Year Allowable Tax Rate  $3.2500
D6. Current Year Maximum Allowable Levy Limit (D5. Multipled by D1.) $12,491
D7. Prior Year Excess Collections 0.00
D8. Prior Year Excess Levy 0.00
D9. Current Year Allowable Levy Limit (D6. - D7. -D8.) $12,491

G. Sources
G1. Maricopa County Assessor Reports: Abstracts (SR41110,SR41075,SR41070, SR41095 & SR41085) 
G2. Maricopa County Assessor Reports: Annexations (SR41111) 
G3. Arizona Department of Revenue Annexation Report



12:24 PM 2/10/2016 2 2016 FD Levy Calc.xls Levy Template - LAK

Paul D Petersen Office of the 
Assessor Maricopa County

Assessor

      2016 Net Assessed Value Detail

Superstition Fire & Medical

Current Net Assessed (2016) Primary
Primary      
Growth

C1. Net Centrally Valued Property 24 -4.0%

C2. Net Real Property 249,680 5.0%   y

C4. Net Personal Property 134,644 9678.1%

C4a Exemptions 78,590 844.1%

C5. Net Assessed 384,348 60.7%
0

Prior Year Net Assessed Value February 10, 2015
Primary

F1. Net Centrally Valued Property 25
F2. Net Real Property 237,790   

 F4. Net Personal Property 1,377
F4a. Exemptions 8,324
F5. Net Assessed 239,192

0  
G. Sources

G1. Maricopa County Assessor Reports: Abstracts (SR41110,SR41075,SR41070, SR41095 & SR41085) 
G2. Maricopa County Assessor Reports: Annexations (SR41111) 
G3. Arizona Department of Revenue Annexation Report

H. Notes
H1.

H2.

The Levy Worksheets have been modified to reflect net assessed valuations for the Current Property Subject 
to Taxation in Prior Year, Current Net Assessed Valuations and Prior Year Net Assessed Valuations.

The Levy Worksheets have been modified for Tax Year 2013 to combine unsecured and secured Personal 
Property into a single net assessed valuations for the Current Property Subject to Taxation in Prior Year, 
Current Net Assessed Valuations and Prior Year Net Assessed Valuations.



Go to Item 7 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 17, 2016 
Agenda Item: 6 
BOD#: 2016-02-05 
 
Agenda Item Title:  
Discussion and possible scheduling of a Board Work Session to discuss strategic planning of Thunder 
Mountain Middle School. 
 
Submitted By:  
Fire Chief Paul Bourgeois 
 
Background/Discussion:  
The strategic planning for acquiring Thunder Mountain Middle School (TMMS) from the Apache 
Junction Unified School District (AJUSD) needs to continue to reach a goal that is fiscally responsible 
for our tax-payers and assists our community partners that would utilize the facility.   
Staff recommends holding a Board Work Session to discuss this topic more in depth.  Staff suggests 
Monday, February 22, 2016, at the time approved by the board to hold the Work Session. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Setting a date and time for a Board Work Session 
 
Financial Impact: 
N/A 
 
Enclosure(s): 
N/A 
 

 

Recommended Motion: 
“Motion to direct staff to prepare the agenda and necessary documents to hold a Board Work Session 
on Monday, February 22, 2016 at (TIME DECIDED UPON) to discuss strategic planning regarding 
acquiring Thunder Mountain Middle School.”  
 

 



Go to Agenda  
 

Go To Statistical Reports 

Governing Board Meeting – February 17, 2016 
Agenda Item: 7 
BOD#: 2016-02-06 
 
Agenda Item Title:  
Senior Leadership Team Reports 

a. Fire Chief 
b. Emergency Services 
c. Technical & Community Services 
d. Administrative Services 
e. Financial Services 

 
Background / Discussion:  
This item is for the fire chief and his staff to share information with the board of items occurring within, 
or related to, the fire district. Any item shared is for information only. Upon request of the board, any 
item shared during this agenda item may be moved to the agenda for future meetings. Board 
discussion, other than clarifying questions, cannot occur and no action, position, or direction may occur 
until the specific item is placed on the agenda. 
 

• Statistical Reports for January 2016 
 
 
Governing Board Meeting – February 17, 2016 
Agenda Item: 8 
BOD#: 2016-02-n/a 
 
Agenda Item Title:  
Announcements 
 
Background / Discussion:  
The BOD and/or staff may share information at this time. 
 
 
Governing Board Meeting – February 17, 2016 
Agenda Item: 9 
BOD#: 2016-02-07 
 
Agenda Item Title:  
Adjournment 
 
 

 

Recommended Motion: 
 

“Motion to adjourn the board meeting.” 
 

 



Superstition Fire & Medical District 
January 2016 - Monthly Report 

 

Average Travel Time 

 Metro Urban Suburban Rural 

Travel Time Goal 5:12 5:12 6:30 13:00 

Average Travel Time 
by Population Density 

4:41 6:19 6:00 6:00 

Average Travel Time 
District Wide 

5:24 

 

 
 

 
 

Dispatches by Unit 

Unit Dispatches Fiscal YTD 

B261 23 142 

E261 260 1707 

E262 104 627 

L263 315 2009 

L264 78 584 

E265 28 272 

CM263 151 748 

M261 84 84 

M263 161 161 

M264 78 78 

TRV263 0 4 

U262 0 12 

BR262 2 39 

BR263 0 13 

BR265 1 17 

RH264 0 22 

 

Population Density 
Definitions 

Metropolitan 
An area with a population density of 

3,000 or more people per square mile. 

15% 

Urban 
An area with a population density of 
2,000-2,999 people per square mile. 

8% 

Suburban 
An area with a population density of 
1,000-1,999 people per square mile. 

10% 

Rural 
An area with a population density of 0-

1,000 people per square mile. 

67% 

 

Rescue/EMS, 
551, 67%

Not Recorded, 134, 16%

Good Intent Call, 74, 9%

Service Call, 26, 3%

Fire, 15, 2%
Special, 9, 1%

False Alarm/Call, 7, 1%

Hazardous Condition, 6, 1%

Incident Type Summary

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

0
:0

0

0
1

:0
0

0
2

:0
0

0
3

:0
0

0
4

:0
0

0
5

:0
0

0
6

:0
0

0
7

:0
0

0
8

:0
0

0
9

:0
0

1
0

:0
0

1
1

:0
0

1
2

:0
0

1
3

:0
0

1
4

:0
0

1
5

:0
0

1
6

:0
0

1
7

:0
0

1
8

:0
0

1
9

:0
0

2
0

:0
0

2
1

:0
0

2
2

:0
0

2
3

:0
0

Average Ambulance Incident Volume by Hour of Day

Average Incidents Per 1 Hr Block Average Baseline



Superstition Fire & Medical District 
January 2016 - Operational Report 

 

Community Services & Activities 

Description Jan 2016 Fiscal YTD 

Blood Pressu 
re Check Events 

12 70 

Car Seats Installed/Placed 1 41 

CCR Demonstrations 10 35 

CCR Demo Students 497 1403 

Community Events/Festivals 5 43 

Community PSAs Produced 0 2 

CPR & 1st Aid Classes 1 6 

CPR & 1st Aid Students 5 33 

CPR & AED Classes 0 27 

CPR & AED Students 0 116 

Fire Investigations Unk. 5 

Fire Station Tours 1 6 

Home Safety Checks - NEW 4 4 

Inspections - Business 15 72 

Inspections - Specialty/Complaint 15 89 

Juvenile Fire Setter Program 0 2 

Neighborhood Canvass - Post-Drowning 0 1 

Neighborhood Canvass - Post-Fire 0 1 

Plan Reviews 16 105 

Safety Classes - Fire & Water 2 14 

School - Fire Drills 0 3 

School - Pub Ed Classes 1 2 

Smoke Alarms Placed 20 101 

 

 

Injury Report 

 Jan 2016 Fiscal YTD 

Injuries 4 10 

Exposures 1 1 

Sharps 1 1 

 

 

Fire Operations, 779.40

EMS, 511.00

Physical Fitness, 362.00
TRT, 65.00

Driver/Operator, 59.00
Administrative, 34.50

Wildland, 34.00
HazMat, 13.00
Fire Prevention, 2.00

Training Hours Categories

Congratulations to our 
newest firefighters! 

Trace Leggett, Wes Fimbrez, and 
Trey Schow graduated from their 

Recruit Training Academy 
on January 28th. 

 

 
 

 

 
Annual Ladies Hat Luncheon 

at Lost Dutchman RV Park 

 



 
Go to Appendix B 

 
Go to Agenda 

 
Appendix A 

 
a) Board Meeting Minutes from January 20, 2016 

 
Submitted By:  
Fire Chief Paul Bourgeois 
Board Secretary Jasmin Jones 
 
Background / Discussion:  
The board meeting minutes of the previous meeting(s) are provided for the BOD to approve. If the BOD 
would like to discuss the minutes, they may be removed from the consent agenda. After approval, 
minutes are signed by the Clerk of the Board and kept as the official public record.  
 
Financial Impact/Budget Line Item: 
N/A 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
Staff recommends approval of January 20, 2016 board meeting minutes. 
 
Enclosure(s):  
January 20, 2016 Board Meeting Minutes 
 



 

 January 20, 2016 Governing Board Meeting Minutes 1 
 

                                                                                                                               
 

Governing Board Meeting Minutes 
January 20, 2016 

PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38.431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC THAT THE 
SUPERSTITION FIRE & MEDICAL DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARD OF DIRECTORS HELD A MEETING ON 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 20, 2016  THE MEETING WAS HELD AT THE SUPERSTITION FIRE & MEDICAL 
DISTRICT’S ADMINISTRATION OFFICE, 565 N. IDAHO ROAD, APACHE JUNCTION, ARIZONA.   
THIS MEETING WAS OPEN TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC AND BEGAN AT 5:30 P.M. 
 
A. Chairman Cross called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 
B. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Director House. 

 
C. Roll Call showed Chairman Jeff Cross, Clerk Gene Gehrt, Director Todd House, and Director Jason 

Moeller as present.  Director Charlie Fox was absent. 

Senior Leadership in attendance: Fire Chief Paul Bourgeois (telephonically, attended in person at 
1815), Assistant Chief Jerome Schirmer, Assistant Chief Dave Montgomery, Assistant Chief Mike 
Farber, Assistant Chief Brett Broman, and Finance Director Roger Wood were present. 

Executive Assistant acting as Board Secretary Jasmin Jones was present for the meeting. Legal 
Counsel Donna Aversa was absent from the meeting. 

 
Item 1:  Review and approval of the December 2015 financial reports and bank reconciliations.  

(BOD #2016-01-01) 

Motion by Director House to approve the December 2015 financial reports and reconciliations.  
Seconded by Director Moeller. 

Vote 4 ayes, 0 nays. (Director Fox Absent).  Motion passed.  
 
Item 2:  Recognition of employee performance, achievements and special recognition for community 

members. (BOD #2016-01-02) 
 

Assistant Chief Dave Montgomery read the list of the following January Service Anniversaries 
Fire Engineer John Christensen 27 Years 
Fire Captain / Paramedic Rob Bessee 15 Years 
Engineer / Paramedic Chuck Hanson 13 Years 

 
Assistant Chief Jerome Schirmer introduced new Fire Captain, Dave Pohlmann – he was given 
his Fire Captain Badge. 
 
Assistant Chief Brett Broman presented Fire Captain / Paramedic Dave Pohlmann with 2015 FF 
of the Year. 
 
Paramedic Jeannette Bodley presented Captain Dave Pohlmann, Captain Mark Gomez, and 
Transportation Services Manager Billy Warren a special plaque on behalf of the Transportation 
Services’ Division, thanking them for their hard work assisting getting the new Medic Rides in 

Superstition Fire & Medical District 
565 North Idaho Road, Apache Junction, AZ 85119 

Phone (480) 982-4440, Fax (480) 982-0183 
www.sfmd.az.gov 



 

 January 20, 2016 Governing Board Meeting Minutes 2 
 

operation. 
 

Item 3:  Call to the Public. (BOD #2016-01-n/a) 
None 

 
Item 4:  Consideration and possible approval of all consent agenda items listed below:  

(BOD #2016-01-03) 

a) Board Meeting Minutes from December 16,  2015 
b) Purchase of equipment to outfit Battalion Chief Truck 

Motion by Director Moeller to approve consent agenda items for January 20, 2016.  Seconded 
by Clerk Gehrt. 

Vote 4 ayes, 0 nays. (Director Fox absent).  Motion passed.  
 
Item 5: Discussion and possible approval of the Fire District’s Independent Auditor’s Report and related 

financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015, as required by Arizona Revised 
Statutes §48-253, and as presented by Marilyn Mays, CPA, Partner – Henry & Horne, LLP – 
Certified Public Accountants.  (BOD #2016-01-04) 

The District’s annual audit was completed as required by A.R.S. §48-253.  Ms Mayes presented 
to the Board information regarding the annual audit, which showed positive findings in all areas. 
Motion by Director House to approve the Fire District’s Independent Auditor’s Report and 
related Financial Statements for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2014 and ending on June 30, 
2015, as submitted by Marilyn Mays, CPA, and to direct Staff to submit the auditor’s report to 
Pinal County and Maricopa County as required by ARS §48-253.”.  Seconded by Chairman 
Cross. 

Vote 4 ayes, 0 nays. (Director Fox absent).  Motion passed.  
 
Item 6: Presentation regarding the overall performance of the District’s 457 Deferred Compensation 

plan and related Nationwide Retirement fund portfolio.  (BOD #2016-01-05) 

Finance Director Roger Wood introduced Chuck Sklader to the Board.  The District has retained 
Chuck Sklader, Registered Investment Advisor from SST Benefits Consulting to advise the 
Board on the overall performance of the 457 Deferred Compensation 457 Fund and the 
associated Nationwide Retirement fund provider.   

Mr. Sklader gave a brief update to the Board on the following: 

- The District’s 457 / Nationwide Retirement fund performance in comparison to comparable 
benchmarks and key investment market drivers for 2015. 

- Data on the overall asset growth of the District’s 457 Deferred Compensation program. 
- Feedback from employee participants regarding Nationwide Retirement’s and Galloway 

Asset Management’s employee service. 
 
Item 7: Discussion and possible approval to amend the current Fee Schedule for District Fire and 

Medical Records Requests.  (BOD #2016-01-06) 

Assistant Chief Mike Farber introduced the topic to the board, the District charges a fee of $ 
10.00 for fire and medical records for third party requests from insurance companies and 
attorneys.  This fee structure has remained in place for more than ten years.  

With the new Transportation Services Division beginning services on January 4, 2016, the 
District anticipates a significant increase in record requests.  As stated in the December Board 
of Directors meeting, the District would like to increase the fees for records requests to $20.00.  
The District will continue to provide copies of records for free to residents of the District 



 

 January 20, 2016 Governing Board Meeting Minutes 3 
 

requesting their own records.   

Motion by Clerk Gehrt to approve amending the fee schedule for District records requests for 
third party entities from $10.00 to $20.00.  Seconded by Director House. 

Vote 4 ayes, 0 nays. (Director Fox absent).  Motion passed. 
 

Item 8: Possible adoption of Resolution 2016-01: Acknowledgement of Serious Fire District Financial 
Crisis.  (BOD #2016-01-07) 

Chairman Cross introduced the resolution to the Board.  He stated that fire districts across the 
State of Arizona are formalizing Resolutions for their Governing Boards to support the Arizona 
Fire District’s Association Legislative Agenda. 

Motion by Clerk Gehrt to adopt Resolution 2016-01: Acknowledgement of the Serious Fire 
District Financial Crisis.  Seconded by Director Moeller. 

Vote 4 ayes, 0 nays. (Director Fox absent).  Motion passed. 
 
Item 9: Discussion and possible approval of the Fire Chief’s updated contract.  (BOD #2016-01-08) 

Clerk Gehrt stated he asked for this item to be placed on the agenda, to update Fire Chief Paul 
Bourgeois’ contract.  The contract has been updated by direction to reflect the suggested 
language regarding vacation usage, the evaluation being based on the Operational and 
Succession Plan, and updated the date through December 31, 2020. 

Motion by Director Moeller to approve the Fire Chief’s contract through December 31, 2020 
with updated language as stated.  Seconded by Director House. 

Vote 4 ayes, 0 nays. (Director Fox absent).  Motion passed. 
 
Item 10: Senior Leadership Team Reports. (BOD# 2016-01-09) 

 Fire Chief Report 
o Testified at the State Capitol on behalf of the American Heart Association and the 

Anthony Bates Foundation. 
 To make Hands ONLY CPR a standard before graduating high school. 

o Save Our Fire Districts Arizona 
 www.saveourfiredistrictsaz.com  
 Please Contact Your Legislature – simple steps on their website with a 

letter already written and will go directly to your legislature. 

 Emergency Services / Operations  
o Recruit Graduation 

 1/28/16 starting at 1800 
o CCU Program Update (now being referred to as Community Medic Program) 

 New Nurse Practitioner – Melinda will begin soon 
o Ambulance Operations Update 

 160 Transports up to date – averaging 10 a day as projected 
o Grant Application – Blue Card (with combined agencies) / VICC 
o Blue Card Training in February 
o Citizen Testimonial of Excellent Customer Service 

 Technical & Community Services 
o Technical Services 

 Spam and bandwidth usage reports are now received on Monday 
 Gathering information for a large group for the G2 app roll-out 
 Intermedix/ImageTrend Connection is almost complete 
 Telestaff configuration 

o Community Services  

http://www.saveourfiredistrictsaz.com/


 

 January 20, 2016 Governing Board Meeting Minutes 4 
 

 Community Risk Reduction Program – Tina completed NFA’s Managing 
Effective Prevention Program through the community  

 Tina will attend AZ Fire & Burn Educator Association Community Risk 
Reduction Conference in Laughlin, AZ  

 Continuing to grow the AED Program throughout the community  
 Fire & Fall Safety for Older Adults presentations have begun in the 

community 
 Working on Smoke Alarm Kits and Education for Crews 

 Administrative Services 
o Open Enrollment 

 Benefit Logic will launch Online Enrollment process for 2016/2017 
o Hosting Upcoming Classes 

 Accreditation Consortium – January 27th  
 Exceeding Customer Excellence – January 28th  

 Financial Services 
o FY 2015/2016 Fire Insurance Premium Rebate 

 Received check for $94,708 after a mistake on the States end. 
o Medicaid / Medicare 

 Medicaid – Received notification of application approval 
 Medicare – Application and final inspection have been completed, waiting 

on approval. 
o Collection Agency 

 Researching agencies now, will present to the board at the February 
meeting. 

o Worker’s Compensation 
 Discussed our Worker’s Compensation experience at the AFDA 

Roundtable. 
o Completed W2 and 1099 creation for calendar year 2015 
o Transport Services Integration 

 Completed the initial transfer to the 150 fund for payroll 
o Annual Audit 

 Completed Audit, Presentation by Marilyn Mays is final step 
 Jasmin will mail the documents to the correct agencies per ARS. 

o FY 2016/2017 Budget Pre-Planning 
 Update budget schedule for 16/17 
 Received information for employer retirement 

o CYMA 
 Training to expand the CYMA system  
 Looking at the HRIS portion of CYMA 

 
Item 11:  Announcements (BOD# 2016-01-n/a) 

N/A 
 
Item 12:  Adjourn (BOD# 2016-01-10)  

Motion by Director House at 6:46 p.m. to adjourn the meeting. Seconded by Clerk Gehrt. 

Vote 4 ayes, 0 nays. (Director Fox absent).  Motion passed. 
 

 



 

 January 20, 2016 Governing Board Meeting Minutes 5 
 

Governing Board Approval: 
 
      
Gene Gehrt, Board Clerk  
 
Jasmin Jones  
 



Go to Appendix C 
 

Go to Agenda 

 
Appendix B 

 
b) Possible adoption of annual contract for property and casualty insurance services. 

 
Submitted By:  
Finance Director Roger Wood 
 
Background / Discussion:  
Cindy Elbert Insurance Services is our current broker for our ESIP insurance property damage and 
liability policies.   
The quote we received from Cindy Elbert Insurance Services for the period March 1, 2016 – February 
28, 2017 is $121,701.  The increase is due to the following:   
 
   Last Year This Year Change  Coverage 
A. Auto & Property: $72,923 $93,596 +21,991  Vehicle, Buildings, contents  
B. Inland Marine:   10,032 16,636 +  6,604   Portable equipment 
C. Umbrella Liability:10,777 11,469 +     692   Umbrella, General, Professional  

$93,732 $121,701 $29,287 
 
In total, this represents a 31.7% increase in cost which is caused by the following: 

A. Since last year the District added five (5) additional ambulances valued at $1.6 million. 
B. The District is purchasing a new vehicle coverage called Guaranteed Replacement Cost value 

for 10 of its newest vehicles.  This coverage will provide “the lesser of the cost of a new apparatus 
or the actual amount spent for repair or replacement.”  This coverage only applies to vehicles 5 
years old or newer. 

C. This District’s loss ratio is 125.33% over 6 years which is causing approximately 10% ($9,300) 
of the annual increase. 

Additional Items for Consideration. 
1. Terrorism Coverage. 

a. Annual premium = $2,090 
b. The Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002 requires insurance companies to offer terrorism 

coverage.   
c. The District can deny this coverage. 

2. Optional Increased Cyber Liability Coverage. 
a. Annual premium = $6,912.33 - $9,425.27 ($100K/$500K to $500K/$2.5M limits) 
b. The General Liability coverage (D above) already includes $1M per event/$10M aggregate 

network security and data breach liability coverage 
c. The District can deny this coverage. 

 
Financial Impact/Budget Line Item: 
Additional annual cost of $29,287.00 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
Staff recommends the approval of the ESIP insurance for property and vehicle damage, and liability.  
Staff also recommends the Board reject the Optional Terrorism and Increased Cyber Liability coverage.  



Go to Appendix C 
 

Go to Agenda 

Staff also recommends to approve the payment of the associated premium of $121,373 to take effect 
on March 1, 2016. 
 
Enclosure(s):  
Cindy Elbert Insurance Services Premium Quote  









































































































Go to Item 5 
 

Go to Agenda 

 
Appendix C 

 
b) Possible adoption of a contract for collection agency. 

 
Submitted By:  
Fire Chief Paul Bourgeois 
Assistant Chief Mike Farber 
 
Background / Discussion:  
On January 4, 2016 SFMD launched our new Transportation Services Division.  Intermedix was 
selected as our billing company.  With any billing service some accounts are not paid and must be 
referred to collections.  
Based on Intermedix’s recommendation and other agencies positive experiences with Professional 
Credit Service (PCS) it is recommended that the District sign a one year contract selecting them as our 
collection agency for transportation services billing.    
 
Financial Impact/Budget Line Item: 
PCS will receive 21% of all bad debt collected and will return to the District 79% 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
Staff recommends to approve the contract with Professional Credit Service as the district’s collection 
agency. 
 
Enclosure(s):  
Contract  








	1 1 2016 February Cover Page
	021716_BoardAgenda
	1 February Blurb 1
	1 February Financial Statements and Bank Rec Sig Page
	2 February Blurb 2
	3 February Blurb 3
	4 February Blurb 4
	5 February Blurb 5
	5 Superstition FD - Pinal 2016 Levy Limit
	Superstition

	5 Superstition - Maricopa 2016 NAV
	Levy Template

	6 February Blurb 6
	7 February Blurb 7
	2016-01_Monthly Report
	2016-01_Operational Info
	4 CA a_February4CAa
	4 CAa BODMin_012016 4CAa
	Governing Board Meeting Minutes
	January 20, 2016

	4 CA b_February4CAb
	4 CAb March 2016 - February 2017 Cindy Elbert Insurance Documents 4CAb
	4 CA c_February4CAc



